1987

Utah v. Duran : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction to hear the above entitled appeal is conferred upon the Court of Appeals of the State of Utah pursuant to Utah Code Annotated 1953 (as amended) §77-35-26(2)(a).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The Defendant is appealing a conviction for Second Degree Theft upon the grounds that the evidence as presented at trial was insufficient to support a finding of guilt.

NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from a guilty verdict rendered by a jury for the crime of theft, a second degree felony. Trial for the aforementioned offense was held in The Second Judicial District Court, County of Weber, State of Utah, the Honorable Ronald O. Hyde presiding. On January 8, 1987, Judge Hyde sentenced the Defendant to serve a term in the Utah State Prison of not less than ~~one~~, nor more than fifteen years.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On October 30, 1986, at approximately 10:10 p.m., Defendant Michael L. Duran, and co-defendant David C. Stewart were arrested by undercover agents for allegedly attempting to sell two stolen rifles. Defendant Michael Duran was the passenger, and co-defendant Stewart was the driver of a car in which the rifles were found. Defendant alleges that the guns were put into his car by a Mr. Kenny Nevarez, a friend of David Stewart. Defendant Duran stated at trial that while riding in David Stewart's automobile as a passenger, he and Stewart drove past the home of Stewart's friend, Kenny Nevarez. Nevarez waived at Stewart to stop. Stewart pulled to the curb and Nevarez asked him to put two rifles into the trunk of his car and take them to Mountain Oil Co., at 10:00 o'clock that evening, where Mr. Nevarez had arranged to sell the rifles to Mr. Rod Bennett, the manager of Mountain Oil, who was known as a person who often purchased, and traded guns and rifles. Mr. Nevarez would then be able to pay Mr. Stewart a \$50.00 debt.

Both Defendants Duran and Stewart stated at trial that they did not know the rifles were stolen, but that they expected to meet Kenny Nevarez at Mountain Oil, where he would sell the rifles to Mr. Bennett, and pay Defendant Stewart the \$50.00 debt.

Defendant Duran has maintained from the outset of this action that he was merely a passenger of the vehicle in which Nevarez placed the two stolen rifles and had nothing to do with the alleged sale or theft of the firearms.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Defendant Contends that the State failed to prove, beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant committed a theft.

ARGUMENT

THE EVIDENCE, AS PRESENTED AT TRIAL, IS INSUFFICIENT TO PROVE THE DEFENDANT GUILTY BEYOND REASONABLE DOUBT OF A SECOND DEGREE FELONY THEFT.

Section 76-6-404 Utah Code Annotated, 1953 (as amended) places a burden of proof upon the State to prove beyond a reasonable Doubt that a defendant obtains or exercises unauthorized control over the property of another with a purpose to deprive him thereof, and in the absence of such proof, the defendant must be acquitted.

Counsel is mindful of the Court's rather strict standards of review when, in fact, the Court is asked to review the records to determine the sufficiency of a verdict. This view is expressed in State v. Newbold, 581 P.2d 991 (Utah 1972) where the Utah Supreme Court held,

To set aside a jury verdict, evidence must appear so inconclusive and unsatisfactory that reasonable minds acting fairly upon it must have entertained reasonable doubt that the Defendant committed the crime. Id. at 972; see also, State v. Carlson, 635 P.2d 72 (Utah 1981); State v. Martinez, 709 P.2d 355 (Utah 1985).

In applying this standard of review to the present case, it is clear that the evidence was not conclusive or satisfactory to the extent necessary to sustain a verdict of guilty. There was no evidence given at the trial that would establish conclusively that the Defendant was the one who broke into the

residence of Marty Taylor at 2894 S. 2700 W. and stole various items including the two rifles found in the trunk of David Stewart's car. It is feasible that someone else could have broken into the Taylor home and taken the rifles and given them to Mr. Nevarez, and thus to Stewart, as both Duran and Stewart testified was the case.

Even if the Defendants knew that the rifles were stolen at the time they obtained them from Nevarez, they cannot be held liable for the theft of the rifles, but would have more properly been charged with attempting to sell stolen property.

Under the circumstances of this case, the actions of the Defendant were not inconsistent with someone merely trying to sell some rifles to an interested party in order to receive payment of a debt.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing arguments and a thorough review of the evidence, the Defendant respectfully requests this Court to reverse his conviction.