1987

Utah v. Duran : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

This appeal is from a conviction for the offense of theft, a second degree felony, after a trial in the Second Judicial District Court. This court has jurisdiction to hear the appeal under Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(e) (Supp. 1986).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The defendant is appealing a conviction of second degree theft on the grounds that the evidence presented at trial was insufficient to support a finding of guilty.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant, Michael Lupe Duran, was charged with theft, a second degree felony, in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 76-6-404 (1953 as amended). After a jury trial, defendant was found guilty as charged. Defendant was sentenced by Judge Ronald O. Hyde on January 8, 1987, to the Utah State Prison for a term of one to fifteen years.

This appeal is a companion case to State v. Stewart, case no. 870213-CA, also pending on appeal. The issue raised in both appeals relating to the sufficiency of evidence are identical.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On October 29, 1986, Marty Taylor's home was broken into (R. 4-6). Eight guns were stolen, along with jewelry and \$200.00 in cash (R. 6-7). On that same day, Taylor contacted Rodney Bennett, an employee at Mountain Oil, to watch for the stolen property. Taylor described the rifles to Bennett (R. 27). Mr. Taylor approached Mr. Bennett because sometimes stolen property is sold around Mountain Oil (R. 13).

On October 30, 1987, at about 4:00 o'clock p.m. Kenny Nevarez, a friend of defendant's, came into Mountain Oil trying to sell rifles to Mr. Bennett (R. 28-29). When Mr. Bennett asked Mr. Nevarez about the prices Mr. Nevarez said he would have to check on the price from the other fellows (R. 29). Bennett and Nevarez went around the back of the station to Stewart's car, where defendant and Stewart were, the trunk was opened and Mr. Nevarez showed Mr. Bennett the rifles (R. 30-31). Mr. Bennett recognized the rifles as the ones stolen from Mr. Taylor (R. 30-31). Defendant got out of the car (R. 32) and was with Nevarez when the time and terms of the sale were set up (R. 32).

After they left, Mr. Bennett contacted Mr. Taylor about seeing the guns and the sale (R. 38). Mr. Taylor contacted the police (R. 14). The police then set up a plan to arrest the suspects when they tried to sell the rifles that night at 10:00 o'clock (R. 59).

At 6:00 o'clock, defendant returned to Mountain Oil. He asked Mr. Bennett if it was dark enough now. Bennett told him to come back at 10:00 o'clock (R. 40).

At 10:00 o'clock defendant returned in Stewart's car to Mountain Oil and went into the station to get Mr. Bennett (R. 41). Mr. Bennett introduced two narcotics agents, Kelly Call and Mitch Beckstead, as friends who were interested in buying the rifles (R. 41). The four then went outside to the rear of the station, Stewart was waiting behind the wheel of the car, and popped open the trunk from the inside (R. 155). Agent Call renegotiated a deal with defendant which included using marijuana as payment for the rifles (R. 113).

Defendant argues that Nevarez asked them to take the rifles to Mountain Oil the first time (R. 119). Defendant claims that he accidentally showed up at Mountain Oil at 10:00 o'clock that night (R. 122). Defendant denies having renegotiating a deal with the agent Call (R. 125).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The evidence was sufficient to convict defendant of theft. Defendant had the opportunity to present evidence and cross examine witnesses. It then became the function of the jury to weigh the evidence and credibility of the witnesses in rendering a verdict.

ARGUMENT

POINT_I

THE EVIDENCE WAS SUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT DEFENDANT'S CONVICTION.

Defendant asserts that the evidence produced at trial was insufficient for the jury to convict him.

This Court has adopted the following standard of review when considering a challenge of the sufficiency of the evidence:

The standard for determining sufficiency of the evidence is that the evidence be "so inconclusive or so inherently improbable that reasonable minds could not reasonably believe defendant had committed a crime." State v. Romero, 554 P.2d 216, 219 (Utah 1976). In determining whether evidence is sufficient, the Court will review the evidence and all inferences which may reasonably be drawn from it in the light most favorable to the jury verdict. State v. Kerekes, 622 P.2d 1161, 1168 (Utah 1980). Unless there is a clear showing of lack of evidence, the jury verdict will be upheld. State v. Logan, 563 P.2d 811, 814 (Utah 1977).

State v. Gabaldon, 735 P.2d 410, 412 (Utah 1987). As noted in State v. Booker, 709 P.2d 342 (Utah 1985):

In reviewing the conviction, we do not substitute our judgment for that of the jury. "It is the exclusive function of the jury to weigh the evidence and to determine the credibility of the witnesses" State v. Lamm, Utah, 606 P.2d 229, 231 (1980); accord State v. Linden, Utah, 657 P.2d 1364, 1366 (1983). So long as there is some evidence, including reasonable inferences, from which findings of all the requisite elements of the crime can reasonably be made, our inquiry stops.

Id. at 345 (citation omitted). And, even if the Court views the evidence as less than wholly conclusive, or if contradictory evidence or conflicting inferences exist, the verdict should be upheld. State v. Howell, 649 P.2d 91, 97 (Utah 1982). In short, "on conflicting evidence the Court is obliged to accept the version of the facts which supports the verdict." State v. Isaacson, 704 P.2d 555, 556 (Utah 1985) (citing State v. Howell, 649 P.2d at 93).

Defendant's insufficiency argument is little more than a request for this Court to engage in de novo review of the weight of the evidence and the credibility of the witnesses, and then to substitute its judgment for that of the jury. As is evident from the authority cited above, this Court and the Utah Supreme Court have stated that they will not review a criminal case in that fashion.

Defendant argues that Nevarez gave the rifles to defendant but that he was accidentally involved in the sale of the rifles. In testimony given by Rodney Bennett, defendant's agreement was necessary in setting the price and time of the sale. The narcotic agents, Mitch Beckstead and Kelly Call, testified that defendant was willing to change the terms of the deal without asking Nevarez. While defendant testified otherwise the jury was not required to believe his testimony. "The court could reasonably believe the officer's testimony (and not defense testimony). . . ." State v. Carlson, 635 P.2d 72, 74-75 (Utah 1981). Finally, Joe Bunn identified the car defendant was in when arrested as the car in front of Marty Taylor's home at the time of the theft.

The evidence is sufficient to affirm defendant's conviction of theft. The facts in State v. Newbold, 581 P.2d 991 (Utah 1972), which defendant relied upon for a sufficiency standard, are very similar to the case before the court. The stolen goods were found in defendant's possession, he had control over them and he tried to sell them. In Newbold the court found the evidence sufficient for conviction.

Defendant argues that there is insufficient evidence to prove that he was the one who broke into Mr. Taylor's house. He was not convicted of burglary, but of theft. Utah Code Ann. § 76-6-404 (1953 as amended) requires that the defendant "obtains or exercises unauthorized control over the property of another with intent to deprive him thereof". Defendant was exercising unauthorized control. The testimony by Bennett was that he had control over the disposition of the weapons and was involved in transporting them to Mountain Oil both times. Defendant meant to deprive Marty Taylor of the rifles. He was selling them to the narcotic agents.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument, the State respectfully requests the Court to affirm defendant's conviction.